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From: nicki.garcia@akerman.com
Sent: Thursday, February 25, 2010 4:50 PM
To: Filings@psc.state.flLus
Cc: Charles Murphy; Jamie Morrow; mg2708@att.com; th9467 @att.com; hwalker@babc.com;
matthew feil@akerman.com
Subject: Electronic Filing - Docket No. 100021-TP

Attachments: 20100225174426719.pdf

Attached is an electronic filing for the docket referenced below. If you have any questions, please contact either Matt Feil or Nicki
Garcia at the numbers below., Thank you.
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(850) 425-1614 (direct)
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Docket No. and Name; Docket No. 100021 -TP - In Re: Complaint of BeliSouth Telecommunications, Inc., d/b/a AT&T Florida
Against LifeConnex Telecom, LLC f/k/a Swiftel, LLC

Filed on behalf of: LifeConnex Telecom, LLC
Total Number of Pages: 41

Description of Documents: LifeConnex Telecom, LLC's Joinder in NewPhone's Response in Opposition to AT&T's Motion for
Consolidation and NewPhaone's Motion to Dismiss and/or Stay.
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Office of:

Lila A. Jaber

Matthew Feil
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CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: The information contained in this transmission may be privileged and confidential information, and is intended only for the use of the individual or entity
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you have received this transmission in error, please immediately reply to the sender that you have received this communication in error and then delete it. Thank you

LMINT RLMECR - DATE
CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: To comply with U.S. Treasury Department and IRS regulations, we are required to advise you that unless exprcssly stated otherw15e any U.S. federal tax advice
contained in this transmittal, is not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by any person for the purpose of (i) avcudmg P ??Sr thF!g% Izgrng!{evenue Code, or (i)
promoting, marketing or recommending to another party any transaction or matter addressed in this e-mail or attachment. T

2/25/2010 FPSC-COMMSSIGH CLERK




__ et Senterfitt

ATYORMEYS AT LAW

Dallas Suite $200

Denver 106 East College Avenue
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February 25, 2010

VIA ELECTRONIC FILING

Ms., Ann Cole

Commission Clerk

Florida Public Service Commission
2540 Shumard Qak Boulevard
Tallahassee, FL 32399

Re:  Docket 100021-TP — Complaint of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc., d/b/a AT&T
Florida Against LifeConnex Telecom, LLC f/k/a Swiftel, LLC

Dear Ms. Cole:
Please find attached for filing the LifeConnex Telecom, LLC's Joinder in NewPhene's
Response in Opposition to AT&T's Motion for Consolidation and NewPhone's Motion to

Dismiss and/or Stay.

Your assistance in this matter is greatly appreciated. Should you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Matthew Feil

Attachments
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STATE OF FLORIDA
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

InRe: Complaint of BeliSouth Telecom-
munications, Inc., d/b/a AT&T Florida
Against LifeConnex Telecom, LLC f/k/a
Swiftel, LLC

Docket No. 100021-TP

R T i g

LIFECONNEX TELECOM, LLC's JOINDER IN NEWPHONE'S
RESPONSE IN OPPOSTFION TO
AT&T'S MOTION FOR CONSOLIDATION
AND
NEW PHONE'S MOTION TO DISMISS AND/OR STAY

LifeConnex Telecom, LLC t/k/a Swiftel, LLC (“LifeCeonnex”) hereby joins in the
Response in Opposition to AT&T's Motion for Consolidation and Motion to Dismiss
and/or Stay ("Motion") filed on even date herewith by Image Access, Inc. d/b/a
NewPhone ("NewPhone") in Docket No. 100022-TP' and further moves the Commission
to grant in this docket the relief sought by NewPhone in its Motion. A copy of said

NewPhone filing is attached hereto and incorporated herein,

WHEREFORE, LifeConnex respectfully requests that the Commission deny
AT&T's Motion for Consolidation as set forth in the NewPhone Response in Opposition
and moves the Commission to dismiss or, in the alternative, stay this proceeding, as set

forth in the NewPhone Motion.

! The argument contained in NewPhone's Motion regarding AT&T's word-of-mouth promotions does not
pertain to LifeConnex and is not adopted. NewPhone does not resell AT&T word-of-mouth promotions.
LifeConnex does.
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Joinder in Opposition and
Motion to Dismiss/Stay
February 25, 2010

Respectfully submitted this 25™ day of February, 2010.

/x,/ b E
ST S

Matthew Feil, Esq.

Akerman Senterfitt

106 East College Avenue, Suite 1200
Tallahassee, F1L. 32301

(850) 425-1614

Artorneys for LifeConnex Telecom, LLC

{TL218020;1} 2




Joinder in Opposition and
Motion to Dismiss/Stay
February 25, 2010

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has
been served upon the following by email, and/or U.S. Mail this 25" day of February,

2010.

Charles Murphy, Esq.

Jamie Morrow, Esq.

Office of the General Counsel
Florida Public Service Commission
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, FL 3239%-0850
cmurphy@psc.state.flus
jmorrow@psc.state.fl.us

E. Earl Edenfield, Jr. ]
Tracy W. Hatch

Mannel A. Guardian

¢/o Gregory R. Follensbee
150 South Monroe Street
Suite 400

Tallahassee, FL 32301
mg2708(@att.com
th9467@att.com

Henry M. Walker, Esq,

Bradley Arant Boult Cummings, LLP
1600 Division Street, Ste 700
Nashville, TN 37203
hwalker@babc.com

§TL2180G20:1)

o Pttt S TV

Matthew Feil, Esq.



STATE OF FLORIDA
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In Re: Complaint of BellSouth Telecom- )
munications, Inc., d/b/a AT&T Florida ) Docket No. 100022-TP
Against Iimage Access, Inc. d/b/a 3
NewPhone )

_J
MOTION TO DISMISS AND/OR STAY

AND RESPONSE IN OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR CONSOLIDATION

Imape Access, lnc. d/bfa NewPhone {“NewPhone™) respectfully requests that the Florida
Public Service Commission {(the “Commission™) enter an order dismissing the Complaint and
Petition for Relief (the “Complaint™) filed by BellSouth Telecommunications, Ine. d/bfa AT&T
Southeast d/bfa AT&T Florida ("AT&1™) in the above-referenced Docket on January 8, 2010,
or, in the alternative, staying these proceedings pending resolution of Federal Communications
Commission (“FCC”) WC Docket Ne. 06:129, In the matter of Petition of Inage dccess, Inc.
d/b/a NewPhone. for Declaratory Ruling Regurding Incumbent Local Exchange Currier
Promotions Available for Resale Under ihe Communications Act of 1934, as Amended, and
Sections 51.601 et seq. of the Commission's Rules (the “FCC Resale Docket”), and pending

resolution of the courl cases cited below.

Moreover, because the FCC Resale Docket will determine the policy issue that AT&ET
urges the Commission to consider and to consolidate - whether AT&T can apply the resale
discount to retail *“cash-buack™ promotions offered by AT&T to resellers - the Commission
should deny AT&T"s Motion for Consolidation, without prejudice, as premature.  The FCC

Resale Dockel already effectively consolidates this issue, and the FCC's decision will provide

TL218031;)




Response i Opposition
Motion to Dismiss/Siay
February 25, 2010

guidance to AT&T and resellers on a national basis, ratber than subjecting the parties to potential

inconsistent state commission and appellate court decisions.

In support of this Motion to Dismiss and/or Stay and Respense in Opposition to Molion

for Consolidation, NewPhone asserts the following:
BACKGROUND

1. On June 13, 2006, NewPhone filed a Petition for Declaratory Ruling with the

FCC (the “FCC Petition™), at TCC WC Docket No, 06-129, asking the FCC to remove
uncertainty surrounding the resale of incumbent local exchange carrier (“TLEC”) services subject
to cash-back promotions, gift cards, coupons, checks, or other similar giveaways. Section 8.1 of
the General Terms and Conditions of the parties’ 2006 Interconnection Agreement states, “1f the
Parties are unable to resclve the issues relating to the dispute in the normal eourse of business
then either Party shail file a complaint with the Commission or FCC to resolve such issues....”!
In light of the nature of the disputes arising out of AT&["s interpretation of its resale obligations
under federal law, NewPhaone filed the FCC Petition asking the FCC to address issues related to

the resale availability, pricing, and timing of ILECs" eash-back, non-cash-back, and mixed

bumdle promotional offerings,

! Intercomection Agreement between BellSonth Telecommunications, Ing. and Image Access, Ine. d/b/a NewPhone,
dated Apvif 19, 2006, 0s amended and extended o Mareh 31, 2006 (the *2006 Agreement™), Genera! Terms and
Canditions, Seciion §.1,

TLEZVE03




Response in Opposition
Motion 1o Dismiss/Stay
February 25, 2010

2. In response to the FCC’s Public Notice requesting commients and reply comments
fram interested parties,” BellSouth Corporation and AT&T Inc.® both filed timely comments

opposing the relicf requested by NewPhone. This matter is currently pending before the FCC.

3. In January ot this year, AT&T filed separate complaints against NewPhone and
another reseller eperating in Florida, LifeConnex Telecom, LLC, -which AT&T sccks w
consolidate. In its Complaint filed against NewPhone with this Commission, AT&T seeks a
decision declaring that (a) NewPhone has breached its Interconnection Agreement by wrongfully
withholding amouants due and payable, (b) AT&T has been financially harmed, (¢) NewPhone is
ligble to AT&T, and (d) NewPhone is regquired to pay AT&T all amounts withheld, including

late payment charges and interest.”

4, AT&T also filed substantively identical complaints against NewPhone in
Louisiana, Mississippi, Alabama, Georgia, Tennessee, South Caroling, and North Carolina; in

these various jurisdictions, AT&T also filed separate complaints against other resellers.

5. In its Motion for Consolidation, however, AT&T asks that iwo issues it asserls are
“in common” with the other complaint it filed in Florida be consolidated for “expeditious
resolution.” Specifieally. AT&T suggests the common issues are: (1) whether AT&T can apply
the resale discount established by the Commission to “cash-back™ promotions oftered by AT&T

1o ity customers that AT&T makes available for resale, and (2) whether AT&T is reguirved W

? Attached as Exhibit A.

" AT&T Inc. was the result of g nerger af 3BC Comnuuications, Inc. and AT&Y Corp. The opposition of ATET
Inc. in FCC WC Docket Me. D6-129 included the campany’s ILEC subsidiaries,

! See Camplain pp. 3, 5 {99), 9 (part VT).
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Response in Opposition
Meation to Dismiss/Stay
February 25, 2010

offer for resale cerlain customer referral marketing promotions (such as the “word-of-mouth”

promotion).
ARGUMENT
6. As discussed below, the first issue raised by AT&T iy already pending for

resolution before the FCC. Therclore, AT& s related claim against NewPhone should be

dismissed withoul prejudice ar stayed pending the FCC's decision.

7. The second issue raised by AT&T is not applicable to NewPhone as NewPhone
has not sought credits associated with AT&T's customer referral markeling promotions
(including the “word-of-mouth” promotion). Therefore, AT&T’s Complaint fails to state a claim
against NewPhone, and provides no basis for consulidation with respect to (hat issue.’

1. Tlie Commission should dismiss or stay AT&T s Complaint as it relates to the
resale issues being decided in the FCC’s Resale Docket.

8. The Commission should dismiss AT&T"s Complaint or, alternatively, stay the
Complaint pending the FCC’s decision in the FCC Resale Docket.

9. Each complaint, including AT&T’s Complaint beforc the Commission, requires
interpretation of FCC regulations regarding AT&T resale obligations to make retail promotions
available o competitive local exchange carrier (“CLEC™) resellers; nowhere docs AT&T allepe

violation of a state connuission regulation or state statue. Judicial cconomy and efficiency

MNewPhone has asserted the defense of no cause of action as te AT&T’s werd-of-mouth claim in its Answer, and
New Phone will file a dispositive maotion refating to that ¢laim at the appropriate time in this proceeding, assuming
AT&T does not voluniarily withdraw that claim fortbwith, as it should.

TI2EBI0




Response in Opposition
Motion to Dismiss/Stay
TFebruary 25, 2050

would be best served by allowing the FCC, the governing body charged with promulgating and
interpreting the regulations al issue, to provide guidance on the issucs raised by AT&T in the
complaings, and to interpret its own regulations.

10. An order by the FCC may be dispositive of the issues presented in AT& s
Complaint. Without a stay in this proceeding, the parties will most likely waste significait
mouey and Comumission resources developing their respective positions, only to have this
proceeding mooted by an intervening order of the FCC, A dismissal or stay will help conserve
Commission resources and help o avoid multiple appeals to various forums.

11, Consolidation of a repional issne involving interpretation of Federal statutes and
regulations can realize efficiencies only at a federal or national level — not on a state-by-state
basis. Furthermore, state-by-siate determinations raise the risk of inter-siate conflicts and are
duplicative of existing proceedings considering the same issues.

12, In fact, the issue concerning restrictions on the resale discount is already pending
in three proceedings:

a. Interpretation of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the *Act™) and FCC
regulations relating to AT&T's resale obligations and the prohibition against imposing
unreagonable or discriminalory conditions or limitations on resale are issues currently pending in
the FCC Resale Docket. According te the FUC’s Public Notice in the FCC Resale Docket
(attached as Exhibit A), interested parties were invited to comment on whelher

ILECs are required either to offer 1o telecornmunications carriers the value of the

giveaway or discounl, in addition to making available for resale at the wholesale
discount the telecommunications service that is the subject of the ILECs retail

FLAIRORT




Response in Opposition
Motion to Dismiss/Stay
February 25, 2010

promotion, or to apply the wholesale discount to the effective retail rate of the
telecommunicitions service that is the subject of the ILEC’s retail promotion...®

This s the same as the first issue AT&T has raised in its Complaint before Lhis
Commission,

b. Issues of AT&T s resale obligations under the federal statule and regulations are
also pending in CGM, LLC v. BelSowh Télecommumications, Inc., Case No. 3:09-0v-00377
(W.D. N.C. 2009). The appellate cowt for that circuit has already ruled, in BellSouth
Telecommunications, Inc. v. Sunford, 494 F.3d 439 (4"' Cir, 2007, t hatl the Act and FCC
regulations thereunder require AT&T io make the promotions offered to retail customers
available to CLEC resellers.

¢. A U.S. District Court in Texas enjoined AT&T from engaging in resirictions on
resale designed to reduce the amount of promotional discounts offered to CLEC resellers when
compared to retail consumers. Budge! PrePay. Inc. v. AT&T Inc. fk/a SBC Communications,
Inc., Case No. 3:09-cv-1494-P (N.D. TX 2009).” AT&T is currenlly appealing that decision to
the United Siates Fifth Circuit Courl of Appeals. Casc Nos. 09-11188 and 09-11099.

13.  Rulings made in these earlier-filed proceedings will clarify or determine AT& s
resale obligations under federal statutes and repulations and advance the regolution of the
particular billing and payment issues in AT&T’s Complaint against NewPhone.

14.  Therefore, NewPhone asserts that resolution .by the FCC of the issues presented in

the FCC Resale Dockel may render unnecessary any further proceedings in this Docket,

? FCC WC Docket No. 06-129, Public Notice, p. | {July 10, 2006),
7 Attsched as Exhibit B.

TLZIRO31))




Response in Opposition
Motion to Dismiss/Stay
February 25, 2010

Accordingly, NewPhone respectfully moves that the Commission stay these proceedings while
the FCC Resale Docket is pending before the FCC.

AL AT&T has no claim against NewPhone for amounts allegedly owed for the
Word-of-Mounth Promotion.

15, AT&T has asserted a claim to hold NewPhone Hable for credits allegedly due
associaled with its word-of-mouth promotion. NewPhone has not applied for credits, let ilone
withheld payments associated with, the word-of-mouth promotion. AT&T should therefore
amend its Complaint against NewPhone to remave any claims relating to customer referyal
marketing promeotions, including the word-of-mouth promotion.

16.  As this claim rclates to AT&T"s Motion for Consolidation, NewPhone apposes
the consolidation of the Complaint against it based on a word-of-mouth claim that does not exist.
Thus, the only claim presenting a case and controversy between AT&T and NewPhone is that
relating to AT&'I;’S improper calculation of the cash-back promotional credits due — an issue
already pending in the FCC Resale Docket.

17.  in sum, judicial ¢conomy and efficiency wouldt be best served by allowing the
FCC, the governing bady charged with promulgating and interpreting the regulations at issue, to
provide guidance on the issues presently before the Commission. An order by the FCC may be
dispositive of the issues raised by AT&T in the complaints. 'Wilhout a stay in thig proceeding,
the parties will most likely waste significanl money and Commission resources developing their
respective positions, only to have this proceeding mooted by an intervening order of the FCC. A
siay or abeyance will help conserve Comniission resources and heip io avord muliple appeals

vartous forums.

L2180
1



Response in Opposition
Motion to Dismiss/Stay
February 25, 2010

I1l. Defer Consolidation Until the Approprinte Time.

18, If the Commission does nol dismiss or stay this proceeding, and does naot deny
AT&Ts Motion for Consolidation as sel forth above, NewPhone requests the Commission defer
ruling on the Motion Tor Consolidation until after any Issue Tdenfification Conferences take place
in the cases referenced in the AT&T Motion for Consolidation.  Only after the Issue
[dentification Conferences will common issues be specified.  As stated above, not all of the
issues in the NewPhone case and Lhe other Florida docket are identical. There may be some
comnon issues and a viable means to consolidate those lor purposes of hearing, Howcever, this
determination is best made after Issue Identification and with the input of stafl: thevefore, the
Commission should defer ruling on AT&T's Motion and instead penmil the parties to negotiate

and, if necessary, submit comment on any consolidation after Issue Identification is complete

WHEREFORE, NewPhone requests that the Commission dismiss the Complaint filed
by AT&T, or in the alternative, stay the proceeding in this Docket pending a resolution of the
FCC Resale Dockel and/or the court cases referenced herein, NewPhone further requests that the
Commission deny AT&T's Motion for Consolidation, without prejudice, as premature. Further,
if dismissal or a stay is not grapted, Tuling on the AT&T Motion for Consolidation showld be

deferred as sct forth in the body of this Motion,

TL213031:1



Response ia Opposition
Muotion to Dismiss/Stay
February 25, 2010

Respectfully submilted this 25* day of February, 2010.

Ros pectﬁlily submiited,
.

/f /“f[/ t}x? p: ;
%L . it :

Mat'fhew Feil,

AKERMAN S ENT ERFITT

106 East College Avenue, Suite 1200
Tallahassee, FL 32301

(850) 425-1614

Paul F. Guarisco (1A Bar Roll No. 22070}

W, Bradiey Kline (LA Bar Rell No. 32530)
PHELPS DUNBAR LLP

11 City Plaza, 400 Convention Street, Suite 1100
Post Office Box 4412 _

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821

Telephone: (225) 376-0241

Facsimile: (225)381-9197

paul guariscof@phelps.com

COUNSEL FOR IMAGE ACCESS, INC. d/b/a
NEWPHONE

TL218031 .1




Response in Opposition
Motion to Dismiss/Stay
February 23, 2010

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBRY CERTIFY fhat a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been served upon

the fallowing by email, and/or U.S. Mail this 25" day of February, 2010,

Charles Murphy, [sq.

Jamie Morow, Esq.

Office of the General Counsel
Tlorida Public Service Commission
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, TF1, 32399.0850
cmurphy(@psc.state. fl.us
Jmorrow(@psce.state. fl.us

B, Farl Edenfield, Jr.
Tracy W. Hatch

Manuel A. Guardian

c/o Gregory R. Follensbec
150 South Monroe Street
Suite 400

Tallahassee, FL 32301
mg2708@att.com

th9467@att.com
Paul F. Guarisco Jm Dry '
Phelps Dunbar LLP President

I City Plaza

400 Convention Street-Suite 1100
P.O. Bax 4412

Baton Rouge, LA 70821-4412
paul.guarisco@phelps.com

Image Access, Inc. d/bfa NewPhone
5555 [Hilton Avenue, 3ie 605

Baton Rouge, LA 70808
Jimdry@newphone.com

TL215038:1
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Exhibit A
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Federal Communications Comunigsion

News Madia intorvation 202 / 418-0500

445 12" St,, S.W. internet: hitpiwww.fcc.gov
Washington, D.C. 20554 TTY: 1-B88-835-5302
DA D6-1421

Released: July t0, 2606

PEITTTION OF IMAGE ACCESS, INC, d/b/s NEWPHONE FOR DECLARATORY RULING
PLEADING CYCLE BSTABLISHED

WC Docket No. 06-129

COMMENTS: July 31, 2006
REPLY COMMENTS: August 1, 20606

On June 13, 2006, Tmage Access, Inc. d/b/a NewPhone (NewPhone) filed a petition for
declaratory roling regarding the resale of incumbent focal exchange carrier (ILEC) services. Specifically,
NewPhene asks the Commigsion to declare that:

o gn ILEC’s refusal to make cash-back, non-cash-hack, and bundied promotional discounts
available for resale ar wholesale rates is an unreasonable restriction on resale and is
discriminatory i vielation of the Acl and the Commission’s rules and policies;

s for all promotions greater than 30 days, 1L.ECs are required either to offer to
lelecormmunieations carriers the value of the giveaway or discount, in additien to-making
available for resale at the wholesale discount the lelecommumications servies that is the
subject of the TLEC"s retail promotion, or to apply the wholasale discount 1o-the effective
vetai} rate of the relecommunications service thiay is the subject ofthe ILEC'S retai}
promotion;

+ the effective rétail rate for a giveaway or discount shall lie determined by subtracting the
fube value of the promotion from the ILEC-tariffed rate for the service that is the subject
of the promotion, and the value of the discount shal) be distribuled evenly across any
minimum monthly commitment up 1¢'a maxinmum of thres months;

o for all TLEC promotions greater than 90 days, 1LECs shall inake avaiiable for resale 1he
telecommunications services contained Within mixed-byndle pramotions {promutions
consisting of both telecommunications and nori-telecommunisations serviees) und apply
the wholesale avoided cost discount fo the affective rerail rate ol the telecommunicuiions
service contained within the mixed bundle;

+ the offective retail rate of the telecommunications service component{s) of a mixed-
bundie promotion shall be determined by provating the lelecommunications servies
component based on the percentage that cach unbundied component is to the wial of the
bundie if added together al their retail, unbundled component prices; and

o telecommunications carriers shall be able Lo resell ILEC promotions greater than 90 days
in duration as of the Nrst day the ILEC offers the promotion (0 retail subscribers.

We invite comuments ori the NewPhone petition. Interested parties may file commenlis on or
before July 31, 2006 and reply comments on or before. August 10, 2006. Commenis muy be [lled using

COTUMUNT yUMBT . paATy
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Exhibit A
Page 2 of 3

the Commission’s Electronic Comment Filing System (ECTS) or by filing paper coples.' Commenls Hled
throuph the ECFS can be sent as an electronic file via the Intemet to http/www. fee.govicgblecls/,
Geherully, only one copy of an electronic submission must be filed. ¥ muliiple docket or rulemaking
aumbers appear in the caption of the proceeding, commenters must tranginit one electronic copy ofthe
comments to each docket or rulemaking number referenced in the caption. In completing the transmsita)
sereen, commenters should include their full name, U.5. Postal Service mailing address, and the
applicable docket or rulemaking number, in this case, WC Daclet No. 06-129. Pariies may also submit
an electronic comment by Internet e-mail. To get {iling instructiens for c-mail comments, conmmenters
should send an e-mail 16 eofs@fce.pov, wnd should include the following words in the body of the
message, ¥gat form,” A sample form and directions will be sent in reply. Parties who choose 1o file by
paper must file an original and four copies of each filing. i more than one ddcket or rulsnakivg number
apipears inthe caption of this proceeding, commenters must submit two additienal copies for each
additional docket or rulemaking number.

Filings can be sent by hand or messenger delivery, by commercial overnight courier, or by lirst-
class or overnight 1.5, Postal Service mai (although we continue to experience delays in receiving U5,
Postal Service mail). Partics ave stroagly encouraged to file comments clectronically using the
Commission’s ECFS.

The Comini';*;siou’s gontractor, Natek, 1nc., will receive hwid-delivered or messenger-delivered
paper filings for the.Comimission’s Secretary at 216 Massachusetts Avenue, NE, Suite | H), Washingion,
D.C. 20002,

s The filing hours et this location are 8:00 a.n. to 7:00 p.m.
o All hand deliveries must be held together with rubber bands or fasteners.
s Any éenvslopes must be disposed of bisfore entering the building,

o Commercial overnight mail {other than U.8. Postal Service Express Mail and Priosity Mail)
must be sent to 9300 East Hampten Drive, Capitel Heights, M 207743,

» 1.8, Postal Service first-clags mail, Gxpress Mail, and Priority Mail should be addiessed o
445 12th Street, SW, Washington, DC, 20554,

All filings must be addressed to the Commission’s Secretary, Marlene H. Dortol, Office ol the
Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, 445 12th Street, $§W, Washington, D.C. 20554, Parties
should also send a-copy of their filings to Lynne Hewiit Engledow, Pricing Policy Division, Wireline
Competition Bureau, Federal Communications Commission, Room 5-A361, 445 |2th Street, 8W,
Washington, D.C. 20554 or by ¢-mail o lynae.engledow@for.gov, Parties shall also serve one copy 'with
the Commission’s copy contractor, Best Copy and Printing, 1he,, Portals 11, 445 12th Street, SW, Roury
CY-13402, Washington, D.C. 20554, (202) 488-5300, or via e-mail la feé@bepiweb.com,

Documents in WC Docket No. (6-129 are available for public ingpection and copying during
business hours al the FCC Reference Informnation Center, 445 F2tH Stiect, SW, Room CY-AZ57,
Washington, D.C, 20554, The documents may also be purchased from BEPI, telephone (202) 488-5300,
facsimile (202) 488-5563, TTY (2072) 488-5562, e-mail foc@bepiweb.com, People with disabilities: To
request materials in accessible formats for people with disabitities (Braille, kige priut, electronic files,

! See Eleciromic Filtng of Pocumerns in Ruleniaking Proceedings, GC Dockei Ne. 97-113, Repoit und Oider, 1]
FCC Raxl 11222 (1998),
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Page 3 of 3

awdio format), send an e-mail to fec304@pfee.pov or eall the Consumer & Governmental Altairs Bureau a
telephone (202) 418-0530 or TTY (202) 418-0432.

This matter shall be treated as & “permit-bul-disclose™ proceeding in accordance with the
Comimission’s ax parte rules. See 47 CF.R. §§ 11200 ef seq. Persons malking oral ex parfe piesentations
are reminded that memorands summarizing the presentations riwsl contain swnmaries of the substance of
the presentations and not merely a listing of the subjects discussed. More than a one- ar two-sentence
descriplion of the views and arguments pregenied generally is requircd, See 47 C.ER. § 1.1206{b)(2).
Otber rules pertaining to oral and written ex parve presentations in permit-but-diselose precesdings are set
forth in section 1.1206(b} of the Commission’s rules, See 47 C.F.R. § 1.1206(b).

For {urther information, contact Lynne Hewitt Engledow, Pricing Policy Division, Wireline
Competition Bureau, {202) 418-2350.
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UNITED 8TATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
DALILAS DIVISION

BUDGET PREPAY, INC. et al,, §
Plaintiffs §ﬁ
v. g Ne, 3:09-0V-1494-P
AT&ET INC, F/K/A $BC 2
COMMUNICATIONS, INC, ct al,, §
Defendants. g
ORDER

Now before the Court is

1. Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Subject Mattey Jurisdiction pursuant to
Fed R. Civ. P, 12(b)(}) filed on August 24, 2009

2. Defendants’ Motion to Dizmiss for Lack of Personal Jursdiction pursuant to Fed. R.
Ciw. P. 12(b)(2) filed on August 24, 2009.

3. Defendants Motion to Dismiss for Failure to State a Claim Upon which Relief may be

Granted pursuant o Ped, R, Civ, P, 12(bY6) Gled on August 24, 2009,

PATET, nc., (il/a SBC Communications, lie. and fts subsidiarics, including AT&T Operavions, Inc., ks SBC
Operativns, Inc., Hinois Bell Telephone Company d/b/a ATEY llinoks, 4 corporation that is whally-owned by its
corporate parenl, ATRT Teleholdings, Ine..; which is in turmn wholly owned by AT&T Ine.; ludinna Belt Telephone
Inc., which is in tumn wholly vwned by ATET Inc.: Michigan Bell Telephone Compaiiy dbfa AT&T Michigan, u
corporation that is wholly owned by i corpovate parent, AT&T Teleholdings, Inc.., which is in tam whally owned
by AT&T Inc.; Wissonsin Bell Teléphone Compary dibifa AT&T Wisconsin, a corporation lhat is wholly owsed by
its coyporate parent, ATET Teleholdings, Inc.., which is in ipm wholly owaed by ATET Ing.; Southwestern Bell
Telephone L.V, db/ AT&T Arkansas, AT&T Kansas, AT&T Missouri, AT& Okinhoms, and AT&T Texas; ang
ATE&T Southeast Inc. #k/n BellSouth Telecommunications, nc. d/bla ATET Alsbama, ATET Florida, AT&T
Georgia, AT&T Kantueky, AT&T Louigism, AT&T Mississippi, AT&T Nevth Carolinae, A&T Seuth Carolina, mid
AT&T Tenncssee {collectively, “AT& T or "Defoadunts™,
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4. Plaintiffs’* Application and Motion for a Preliminary Injunction filed on August 12,
2009,

5. Defendants’ Motion to Tncrease Bond Gled on QOctober 16, 2009.

Alter careful consideration of the law and the partics arguments for the reasons stated
below Defendants' Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction is DENTED;
Defendants' Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Personal Jurisdietion is DENIED: Defendants'
Motion te Dismiss for Failore 1o State a Claim iz DENIED: Plaintiffs' Motion for a Preliminary
Injunction is GRANTED; Defendants’ Malion lo Inerease Bond is GRANTED; Delendaniy’
Motion to Dismiss Plaintiffs' anti-trust and fraud claims is GRANTED, but Plaintifts are
GRANTED leave to amend their complaint (o ve-plead these claims; and Defendants' Motion to
Dismiss Plaintiffs state law claims is DENIED.

[ Background

Plaintiff are Competitive Local Exchange Carviers ("CLECs™), A €LEC iz n small
telephone company that buys (elephone service from Incumbent Local Exchange Carriets
("ILECs") larpe telephone conipanies with existing telecommunications infrastructure. 1LECs
sell telephone service to CLIECs for the retail rete tinus a wholesale discount. CLECS then re-
sell that telephone service fo individual consumers

These type of arrangements are made possible by the Federal Telecommunications Act of
1996 (FTCA). Under the FTCA, ILECs are required to enler into an Interconnection Agreement
("ICA™) which must then be upproved by o state eommission. In this case, there is an approved
ICA between the parties in each individual state. Additienatly, Plaintifts fully selnowledye that

prior to this dispute Defendants have always complied with the 1CA, laws, and regulations,

: Budgel Prepay, Inc., Global Connestion lne. of Awerics, Mextel Corporatici L1LC d@bfa Liflel, Nexus
Communieations, liic., and Teracom, Ine. (collectively "Plainitf "},

Pape 2 of 24




Exhibit B
Page 3 of 24
Case 3:09-cv-01494-P  Document 68 Filed 11/30/2009  Page 3 of 24

About July i, 2009, AT'&;I' alerted CLECs that us of September 1, 2009, they wordd no
longer be eligible for promotional discounts such as the “Win-back Cash Promotion™  Instead
CLECs would bnly be enlitled to a small fraction of the $50 cash-back that refail castomers are
entitled to receive. The amount that CLECS are entitled 10 receive back varies from $3.73 -
$5.54 depending on the location. AT&T has imposed this new method of culeulating the amount
CLECs can receive under the promotion in an altempt to make the rgsale rate reflect consumers’
failure to properly submil their rebate coupon. AT&T's reasoning for placing this restriction on
resale i that only 33.33% of customers actually take the steps necessary- i.¢. subimitting the
caupon - 1o receive the 550 cash back.

Though 47 C.F.R. 51.613(b) requires ILECs to obtain state approval before hiiposing
restrictions like this on resale, Defendants began implcmeﬂtingflhis resale restriction on
September 1, 2009 without the approval of any state comunissions. Plaimiffs have brought
claims for Defendants' failure to obtain statc appraval. Plaintiffs also claim that the new
methodelegy used by AT&T to caleulate credits available to CLECS under the Win-back Cash
Back promotion (herginafler "new caleulation method") vielates the ICA, and the Act. Further,
Plaintiffs have sought an injunction claitning that without one they will lose customers, market
share, and good will as a result of not being able to compete with AT&T s offer. The end result -
oecording 1o Plaintiffs - is that each and every one of them will go out of business within a shorl
period.

18 Request for Declaratory Judgment
Plaintiffs first ¢nuse of action ig for Declaratoiy Judgment pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2201,

Specifieally, Plaintiffs ask the Court 1o issue a judgment declaring that the new caleulation

* e Win-back Cash Promotion sceks (o atirael new customens wway from another eartier o wireless pravider by
offering no-capnection fees and $50 cash back.
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melhod is & restriction on resale that is unreasonable and dissriminatory in violation of 47 U.S.C.
§ 251(c)(4), 47 C.F.R. § 51.605(a), 47 C.F.R. § SL.613(b), and the ICA, (Pls." Am, Compl. § 44.)
Defendants have sought {o dismiss this claim for fack of subjecl matter jurisdiction pursuant to
Rule 12(b)(1}, lack of personal jurisdicfion pucsuant to Rule 12(b)(2), and failure Lo state a ¢laim
pursuant to rule 12{b}{6).
A. Subject Matler Jurisdiction

Whether the Court has subject mafter jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ ¢laims is the first issuc
that the Court must address, Se¢ Ramming v, United States, 28] IF.3d 158, 161 (5th Cir. 2001)
(*When a Rule 12(b)(1) motion is filed in cenjunction with other Rule 12 motions, the court
should congicler the Rule 12(b)(1) jurisdictional attack before addressing any attack on the
merits.”). Rule 12{b)(1) provides that an action must be dismissed when the court does not
possess subject matter jurisdiction ever the plaintilf's claiims. Fed, R. Civ. P. £2(B)(1). A court
may decide a Rule 12(b)(1) motion te disiniss “on any of three separate bases: (1} (he complaint
alone; (2) the complaint supplemented by undispuled facts evidenced in the record: or (3) the
complaint supplemented by undisputed facts plus the cowt’s resplution of disputed (wcts.”
MCG, Inc. v. Great W, Energy Corp., 896 ¥.2d¢ 170, 176 (5th Cir. 1990}, A motion lo dismiss
for tack of subject matter jurisdiction should be granted only if it appears cortain that the plaintiff
cantiot prove any sef of facts in support of his claim that would entitle plaintiff to relief.
Reouming, 281 F.3d at 161,

Defendants argue that this Court lacks subject matier jurisdiction because Plaintiffs must
bring their claims {o a staie commission before beinging those clgime in district court. 1t appesars
that Defindants rely on two separate but-overlapping aygumends for why this clabn musi be

heard by a state commission in the firstinstance. The first arguruent Defendants maks is that
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Plaiatiffs have fatled to exhaust ndministrative reimedies. The Couwrt can easily dispense with this
argument because failure fo exhaust administralive remedies is not vequired by the FTCA.

A case may only bhe disimissed for lick of subject matter jurisdiction based on a Plaintits
failure to exhaust administrative remedics when exhaustion 18 required by statute. Premiere
Netvwork Servs., hc. v. SBC Compe 'ny, Jnc., 440 T,3d 683, 687 n. 5 (5th Cir. 2006) ("Whenever
the Congress statutorily mandates thal u claimant exhawst administralive remedies the exhaustion
requirement is jurisdictional."} (quoting Taylor v, Unired States Treasury Dep't, 127 F.3d 470,
475 (5th Cir, 1997)). "Bul where a stalute does not textually require exhaustion, only the
Jjurisprudential doctrine of exhavstion controls [subjecting a claim to dismissal under Rule
12(b)(6)}; which is not jurisdictional in nature,” fd. Nothing in the FTCA texfually requires
exhaustion. /d, Plaintiffs failure to exhaust administrative remedies therefore has no bearing on
whether the Court has subject matter jurisdiction over Plaintiffs' FTCA clatms.

Defendants' however, also avgue that the.Court lacks subject matter jurisdiction because
section 252(&)(6) only gives district courts the power to-review “determinations” miade by a state-
commigsion, Section 252¢e)(6) statcs:

In any ease in which o state commission makes a defenmination under this section,
any party agprieved by such determiination may bring én detion in an appropriate
Federal distriet cowrt to determine whether the agreement or staterrient meets e
requirements of section 251 of this title and this section.
47 U.8.C. § 252(e)(6). It is true that section 252(e)(6) explicitly pives distriel courts the power
to review state cormimission determinations. But section 252(e)}(6)'s graiint of jurisdiction 10
review state commission determinations plays ne role in determining wiether the Court fas
subject matter jurisdiction in this case.
Bection 252{e)(6) does not play a role indetermining whether the-Court has subject

matter jurisdiction in this case because the Court has jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 or
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what is more commonlty known as federal question jurisdiction. District courts have federal

question jurisdiction “if 'the right of {he [plaintiff] to recover under thelr complainl will be

sustained if the Constitution and laws of the United Slales are given one construction and will be
defeated if they are given another.™ FPerizon Md., Ine. v. Pub. Serv. Conin'n, 535 U S, 635, 643
(2002) {quoting, Steel Co. v, Citizens for Better Lnvy, 523 U5, 83, 89 (1998)). Though a siatute
may divest a dishict cowrt of tederal question jurisdiction, neither section 252{e}(6) nor any other
purt of the Act hips divested district courts of this jutisdiction, Veivzon Md., 535 U.S. al 643-44
(“Nothing in 47 U.S.C, § 252{e)(6) purports to sirip [federal question jurisdietion]. . . .Indeed, it
does not even mention subject-matter jurisdiction, but reads like the conferral of a private right
of action."). The Supreme Court's holding in Verizon Md, lins consistently been inteeproted to
mean that district courts need not look any further thin 28 1.5.€. § 1331 to determine whether
the court has subject matter jurisdiction over FTCA g;laims,"’

Here, the Court has federal question jurisdiction because Plaintifis' yijght to recover is
based almost exclusively on the interpret‘aﬁ on of federsl law. Speeifieally, Plaimtiff has asked
this Court to dectare that Defendants have violated 47 U.8.C. § 251(¢){4), 47 C.F.R. § 51.605(a),

and 47 CFR. § 51.613(b), Accordingly, the Court finds it has federa) question jurisdiction aver

! Yerizon Md. Inc. v, Global Naps, fne. 377 B3 355, 362-63 (4th Cir. 2004}, an remand by 535 11.5. 83 (2002)
(addrossing subject tastler jurisdiction over ITCA claims the court onfy loeked 10 whellier the plainliffs clapins were
substandially based on federal law);, Mich, Bell Tel, Co. v MCIMetro Aveess Transm.Seres., Ine., 323 F.3d 348, 355
(6th Cir. 2003} ("[Flederal courls have jusisdiction fo review slafe cantmission orders for cotapliance with federal
faw, bécause provisions of the Aet da nol preglude jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C, § 1331."); Core Conuni iy, dne. v,
Verizoi Pa., Ine., 493 F.3d 333 (3d Chr, 2007) {to determine whather fedéral question jurisdiction over an ICA
dispute existed the court examined the complaing to determine whether the claims were substantisliybased on
federal taw); W. Radis Servs. Co. v Quest Corp, 536 F.3d 1186 (il Cir. 2008) (We conelude deat . ., wharever
finality or exbaustion requirement § 256{e)(8) might impese does ol adfect the subject matter jurisdivion of the
district cousd in thig case. Rather, the disteict court has pencral federal question jurisdiciion under 28 US.E. § 1331
ooy BellSauth Telecowmms., Tae. vo MCE Metra Avcess Trapsorission Sevws, 317 F3d 1270 (1 11k Cir 2003} (where
plaintils chalfenged the state commissions mieipretation of ain 1CA the distriet eourt had jurizdietion over the case
pursuant 28 LLS.C. § 133)),
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Plaintiffs' cause of action for declaratory judpment and now tirns to Defendants argument that
the case should be digmisacd puvsuant to Rule 12(b)(2).
B. Personal Jurisdiction

The plaintiff bears the burden of establishing a district court’s persenal jurisdiction over a
nomresident defendant, See Wilson v, Belin, 20 F.3d 644, 648 (5th Cir, 1994). The Court must
accept as true all uncontroverted allegations in the complaint, and all factual conflicts presented
by the parties must be resolved in favor of the plaintiff. See id. To excrcise personal jurisdiction
over a nonresident defendant, the Court must determine that due process standards are satisfied
by engaging in n two-pronged analysis, First, the Court determines whether the defendant has
purposefully established “minimum contacts” in the state, [Fso, the Cowrt mus! then agsess
whether the exercise of personal jurisdiction would offend “fraditional netions of fair play and
substantial justice.” See Burger King Corp, v, Rudzewicz, 471 1.8, 462, 473-73, 476 (1985);
Bullion v, Gillespie, 895 F.2d 213, 216 (5th Cir. 1990).

Sufficient minimum contacts can be established through a showing of the existence of
general or specific jurisdiction. See Freudensprung v, Offshore Technical Serv. e, 379 F.3d
327, 343 (5th Cir, 2003). “A court may exercise specific hnisdiction over a nonresident
defendant if the tawsuit arises fromn or relates to the defendaimt’s-¢ontact with the forum state.”
Icee Distribs, Inc. v, J&J Snack Foeds Corp., 325 F.3d 586, 591 (5th Cir, 2003). Specific
jurisdiction exints where a defendant “purposefully avails itsell of the privilege of conducting
activities within the formm state, thus invoking the benefits and protections of its laws.” Birger
King, 471 U.S. at 475. Thé “purposeful availment” neecssary for specific jurisdiclion protects a
defendant from being brougltt into a jurisdiction based solely on “random,” “fortuitous,” or

“attepuated™ contacts. Jd. A single act may form a sufficient basis for personal jurisdiction if the
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claim arises from that single act, and the defendant can reasonably foresee being brought into
court in the forum stale. See fowe Distribs., 325 F.3d al 597,

Defendants argue that Plainti#f has failed tv show thal the Non-Resident ILEC
Defendants (hereinafter "Non-Resident Defendants') have sufficient minimum conthels with
Texas to establish personal furisdiction. But Defondants arguments have all bul ignored the
pervasive contacts relating to the 1CAs and the new ealculation method. Instead, the Non-
Resident Defendants would like the Court to took at all of the contacis the Non-Resident
Defendants do nof have with Texas. But in making this argument Defendants have esseatially
asked this Court to "pay no attention to. the man behind the curfain.” AT&T is the proverbial
man behind the JCAs- the proverbial eurtain. More imporfantly, AT&T is behind the new
calenlation mathod which is at the centerof this dispute, Defendants do not deny these facts
which in themselves assure the Courl that personal jurisdiction exists over the Non-Resident
Defendants. The Court tinds that by completely relying on AT&T for the exceution of ICAs, as
well a5 support and advice relating to ICAs that the Non-Resident Defendants ave purposefully
availed themselves of Texas law. Both throuply the Aets of their dgeni, AT&T, and through their
own uactions.

C. Rule 12(b)(6) - Failure to State a Claim

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6) provides for the dismissal of a complaint when
a defendant shows that the plaintiff has failed to state a claim for which relief can be granted.
"T¢ survive a metion to dismiss, a complaint must contain sufficient factusl matter, aceepted as
true, to 'state a elaim to relief that is plaussible on its face. fgbal v. dshcrafi, — U8, -« 129§
Ct. 1937, 1949 (2009) (quoting Bell Atl. Corp. v. Twombly, 550 1.8, 544, 570 (2007)). The

faciual matter contained in e complaint must allege aclual Faets not lepat conclusiony
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masqueracing as facts. Zd. at 1949-50 ("Although for the purposes of & mation to dismiss we
must take all of the factual allegations in the complaint s true, we "are not bound to aceept as
frue a legal conclusion couched as a faciual allegation.'™} {guoting Twombly, 550 ULS. at 555).
Additionally, the factual allegations of the complaint must state a plavsiblé clnim for reliel. Jd.
A complaint states a "plausible claim for relief when the factunl aflegations contained therein
infer actual misconduet-on the parl of the defendant, ot a "imere possibility of misconduct.” if,;
see also Jacquez v. Procunier, 801 F.2d 789, 791-92 (5th Cir. 1986). Determining whether a
complainl states a plausible claim for relief necessarily requires looking to the glements a
plaintiff must plead to state a claim implicated by the complaint, Jgbal, 129 5. CL. al 1547
{citing Dwomdly, 550 U, 8. at 553-557).

Plmntiffs claim thiat they are entitled 1o a declaration that Defendants breached the 1ICA
and that Defendants have violated 47 U.S.C. § 251(¢)(4), 47-C.F.R, 51.605, and 47 C.F.R.
51.613(b). Detendants arpue Lhat Plaintitfs have failed to state a claim for relief based on the
Jurisprodential doctrine of exhaustion. As discussed above, where exliaustion is not required by
statute failure to exhaust administrative remedies may subject a claim to dismissal under Rule
12(0)6). Premiiere Network Sérvs., Ine., 440.5.3d at 687 n. 5 (citing Yaylor, 127 ¥.3d at 475).
When a plaintiff is required to exhaust administrative remedies under the jurisprudential
cxhaustion doctrine the plaintitf is not entitled to judicial welief. Taplor, 127 F.3d at 476 (" [NJo
one is entitled fo judicial relief for a supposed or threatened injury until the prescribed
admiﬂis‘h'arivg'rmnady has been exhausted.” ") (quoling Meyers v. Bethdehem Shiptuiding Corp.,
303 U.S. 41, 50-51 (1938)). Accordingly, dismissal pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6) is appropriate

when the jurisprudential exhaustion doctrine is applied.
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Sections 251 and 252 of the Aet provide many requirements and procedures for ICAs.
Generally, scetion 251 provides he obligations of focal exchange carvicrs under the Act. See
generally 47 U.8.C. § 251, In conjunction with the obligations ot section 251, Scetion 252
provides the procedures for negotiation, arbitration, and approval of ICAs. See generally 47
1.5.C. § 252, The procedures of section 252 relate to the initial formation of an [CA. See id,
But nothing in sections 251 or 252 of the Act statutorily grants state commissions the authority to
resolve disputes between partics afler the parties have entered into an ICA. Core Comme: 'ns,
Ine. v. Verizon Pa., Ine., 493 £.3d 333 (3d Cir. 2007) ("Beyond [the state colmmissions role in
approving an JCA] there is no real indication of what role the state commissions are (o play, and
the Act is simaply silent as to the precedure [or post-formation disputes."); see also W. Radio
Servs. Co. v. Qwest Corp,, 530 F3d 1186, 1184-99 (Oth Cir. 2008) (discussing the absence of
procedural requirements once an 1CA has been formed). Noting the absence of any post-ICA
formation dispute resolution procedures the Fifth Cireuit, along with the other cireuit courts, has
interpreted the Act as whole to grant state comsissions jurisdiction "fe decide intermediation
and enforcement disputes that arise after the approval procedures are complete.” Sw. Bell Tel.
Co, v. Pub, Utlls. Comm 'n, 208 F.3d 475, 476 (5th Cir. 2000) (heveinafter “SWBT™); see also
Hlinols Bell Tel, Co. v, Global NAPS Hlinois, Inc,, 55) F.3d 587, 593-94 (7th 2008) ("[TThe
Teleecommaunications Act does not expressly authorize a state commission, aler it approves an
interconnection agreement, o resolve disputes arising under it . . . But such autbority is a
sensible corollary to the allocation of state and federal vesponsibilities made by the Aet.").

SWET did not, however, address whother the state commission had exclusive jurisdiction
over disputes between parties that are bound by a previously formed ICA. Rather, SWBY

addressed the namrow question of whether the state conunission may intermediate and resolve
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disputes between porties to an already existing ICA, Defendants argue that because SHET holds
“siate commissions have authority lo interimedinte and resolve disputes belween parties to an
already existing ICA in the first instance that state conmissions have exclusive jurisdiation over
such disputes, Further, Defendants argue that the FCC bas spoken directly to this issue.
Defendants rely on In re Starpower Communications, LLC, 15 F.C.C.R. V277 (2000) for
this proposition, The relevant part of In re Starpower states:
{Alt least two federal courts ISWET and VI Bell Tele. Co. v, Worldeom Tech., Inc.,
179 F.3d 566 {7ith Cir. 1999)] of appeal have held that inherént in state connmissions'
express authority to mediate, mbitrate, and approve interconnection agrecments
under section 252 is the authority fo interpret and enforce previously approved
agreements. These court epinions implicitly recognize thaf, duc to its role in the
approval process, a stale commission is well-suited to address disputes arising from
interconneetion agreemonts:  Thus, we conclude that a state commission's failure to
"act to carry owl its responsibility” under section 252 ¢can in some circumstances
inchide the failere (o interpret and enforce existing inlérconuection agreenrenis.
In re Starpower, 15 F.C.C.R, at 1127980 (emphasis added). Like Defendants, the Third Civéuit
hias taken this part of In re Starpower 10 §tand for the proposition thet stafe conunissions have
exciusive juvisdiction over disputes that arise between parties to an glready existing ICA,
 Core Comnic 'ns, Inc. v. Verizon Pa., Fnc., 493 E.3d 333 (3d Civ. 2007), the Coust of
Appeals for the Third Cirenit upheld a district court's dismissal of the plointiff's claims for breach
of an 1CA and violations of the FTCA because the plainti{Ff had not taken the claims to (le state
conunission in the first instanice. On appeal, the court interpreted In re Starpower 10 mean that
stata commissions huve exclusive jurisdiction over digputes between parliey o an existing JCA.
Core Gommc 'ns, 493 F.3d af 344 ("Pursuant ta FCC guidance, we hold that interpretation and
enforcement actions that arise after a stute commission has approved an interconnection

agreement must be litigated in the first instance belore the relevant state commission.”). In

reaching this conclusion, the caurt noted that fir re Starpower could be read 19 mean more than
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one thing, /4. at 342, Nonetheless, the coust determined that FCC's In e Starpawer decision, as
interpreted by the court, was entitled to Chevron deference.

This Court declines to read 1 re Starpower in this manner, Jn re Starpower does not
give any indication that state commissions are the exclusive forum for resolving dispules aver
already existing ICAs. See genarally, In re Starpower, 15 F.C.C.R. at 11278-79. As the Core
Communications court recogpized, 51 re Starpower can be read to mean more than ene thing,
More simply stated: in re Starpower is ambiguous, And an ambipguous ageney degision is not the
type of decivion that is meant to fill gaps in a statule under Cheveron, Second, n re Starpewer
explicitly indicates that there are circumstances in which a state commission would not be
shirking its responsibilities by failing to interpret and enforce exisiing ICAs, Based on this
statement, the Court finds that if fn re Starpower unnmbiguously stands for amything, it is that
there are circumstances in wihich parties o an existing JCA need vot bring their claims to a state
comumission in the firslinstance.

“The facts and claims in his case provide exactly the type of circumitances in wliich a
plaintiff should not be competled to take their claims to a state commission in the first instance.
Here, the Court is not being asked to interpret the ICA. Rather, the Court is being asked to
interprot federal law, The Court recognizes that without the ICA Plaintitts would not have
standing to challenge Defendants actions. But the fact that the 1CA gives Plaintiffs standing does
not iy itself mean that the Court must interpret the ICA to grant relief (o Plaintiffs, Nor does the
ability of an ICA to negate the requirernents and responsibilities imposed by the Act mean that

the Court must "interpret' the ICA to grant relief to Plaintitts.” Wheie an ICA adopts federa! law

*Seed7USC § 2520 (1) ("An incumbent local exchange carvier may negotiste and enter into a binding agreemeni
with the requesting (Glecomaunfoations carrier or varriers witheut regard o the standards set {forth in subsections (b
ard foy-of section 251 ol this title."} 47 U.S.C. § 252(a)(1); see also 47.CF.R, § 513 {"Ta the extend provided in
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as canlrolling the parties contractual resale obligations for resale the Court need not interpret the
[CA to determine whether the plaintilf is entitled v relief.® Rather, the Court must interpret
federal law to determine if the plaintifT is entitled to relief.

Here, the ICA requires resale restrictions fo be "consistent with regulations prescribed by
the Commission under Section 251(c)(4) of the Act.” (Defs’ App. 57.) Additionally, the ICA
provides thal "[a]l] federal rules and regulations . . . also-apply.” (Id.) When a courtis being
asked to interpret federsf law the policy of allowing the state cominission to interpret the
agreement it approved because it knows the interpretation it intended when approving the
agreement does not apply.

Conversely, it would be bad policy to vequive Plaintitfs in this specific case to exhaust
administrative remedies becaunse it would allow Defendants to shift to Plaintiffs the duties
imposed upon ILECs by the Aot. The Act impases on ILECs a duty te oblain state commission
approval before placing restrictions on resale, 47 C.ER. § 51.613(b). When an JLEC impeses
a restriction on resale that is not pernitted undey 47 C.F.R. § 51.6] 3{a), subsection (b) requires
an ILEC "o prove to the state commission that the restriction is reagsonable and
nondiscriminatory” before imposing the restriction. Despite the reguiation placing the duty of
going to the state commission on ILECs, Defendunts have asked the Cout to require the
Plaintiffs, CLECS, 1o g0 to the state commission before bringing a claim ib federal court. Were

the Court (o oblige Defendints request it would allow them to contravene the requirements and

section 252(e)(2)A) of the Act, a slate commission sball hive awthority to approve an imeérconmection agresment
adopted by negotiation even il the termsof the agreemeni do not comply with the requirements of this part.”),

* Though one could argue thal merely delerniiting feders] law countrols resale restrictions constitutes “iaterpreling’
the ICA, this is bot the type of inlerpretadion hat courts Gnding 1hat exhavstion is reguired have been called upen o
huerprel. See e.g. Express Tel. Servs., Ine. v. Sw. fell Tel: Co., No. 1:02-CV-1082:-0M, 2002 U5, Dist. Lexis 19645
(NI, Tex. Oct. 16,2002).
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intent of the Act. The facts of this case denonsirale how the requirements and intent of (he Act
would be contravened by [breiny Plaintiffs 1o go to the state conumission first when Plamlfts!
claims are predicated on Defendants failure Lo go to the state commission.

As previously disenssed, Congress passed the FTCA with the intent of "opening,
previously monopolistic local telephone markets to competition.” SWBY, 208 F.3d at 477.
Congress enirusted the FCC with the duty of promulgating vegolations that would ensure the
Act's purpose would be mel, including regulations that prevented ILECs from placing restrictions
on resale fhat are unreasonable or discriminatory, 47 U.S.C. § 251(c)(4)(B). To that end, 47
CFR. § 51.613(b) requires ILECs to prove that resirictions on resale are reasonable and
nondiscriminatory before imposing such restrictions. Requiring HLECs o obtain stafe
commmission approval prior to placing restricfions on resale demonsirates a recognition that resale
restrictions can have a devasiating «ffect on a CLEC's ability to remain compelitive. More
importantly, it clearly places the duty to gain state commission approval on ILECs — not CLECs.

Defendants did not gain state connnission approval before implementing the aew
calculation methodology. Instead, Defendants notified Plaintiffs that the new methodology
would go into effect on September 1, 2009, Plaintiffs, fearful that this restriction on resale
would devastate their companies, sought refuge in federal court. Defendants ignored their ownt
duty fo gain state commmission approval before placing restrictions on resale. Then after being
hailed into court Defendants vehemently argue that Plaintiffs should be required to go (o
sevenieen different state commissions befure bringing any claims to one federal cowrt. Where
the jurisprudential exhaustion doctrine is policy motivated, the Court cannot allow Defendants to

mvoke the doctrine in this instance.
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Finding that the jurisprudential doctrine of exhaustion is inspplicable to this case, the
Court turns to the factual allegations of Plaintifts' Complaint to determine if they have stated a
claim for relief,

Plaintiffs have alleged factunl allegations that, taken as frue, infer actual misconduct on
the patt of Defendants. For example, Plaintiffs have alleged that they were nolified by
Defendants of 2 new method that weuld be used to caloulate the rates at which
telecommunication services would be resold to Plain{ifts under certain promotional plang, This
new method provided retail customers who switched to Defendants telephone company from a
different telephone company with fifly dollars cash-back and a waiver of all nonrecurring
chatges associated with adding service, Plaintiffs {hat reseld service fo custoiners switching
companies however, would not be entitled to offer the same fifty dollars cash-back or a waiver of
nonrecurring charges to its customers. Though the complaint provides more factual allegations,
these altegations alone indicate thal Defendants may have violated the requirements of 47 U.S.C.
§ 251(c)4) and 47 CF.R, § 51,605. Morcover, as previausly discussed, Plaintiffs allege that
Defendants failed to obtain state commission approval before implementing the new calcolation
method in vialation of 47 C.F.R. § 51.613(b).

Accordingly, the Court {inds that Plaintitfs have stated a claim for relief and Defendans
Rule 12(b)(6) motion is denied. Defendants however, huve argued that another jurisprudential
doctrine, the primary jurisdiction docirine, warrants dismissal of Plaintiffs clpims. Because the
primary jurisdiction doctrine would only warrant staying these proceedings the Cowt addresses

this argutien sepurately from Defendants' Rule 12(b)(6) motion,
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D. Primary Judisdiction

"[PJrimary jurisdiction ‘comes info play whenever enforcement of the claim reguires the
resolution of issucs [which, under a regulatory scheme, have been pluced) within the speeial
competence of an administrative body; in such a case the judicial process is suspended pending
referral of such issues to the administrative body for its views." Panny v. Sw. Beli Tele. Co., 900
F.2d 183, 187 (5th Cir. 1990) (quoting Sw. Bell Tet. v. AU.C, 735 8. W. 2d 663, 669 (Tex. App.
- Austin 1987, no writ); sae alfso ASAP Paging, Inc. v. CentwryTel of San Marcos Inc., 137 Fed.
Appx. 694, 697 (5th Cir. 2005)("The doctrine of primary jurisdiction applies . .. when a court
having jurisdiction wishes to defor 1o an agency's superior expertise.") (citing Arsberry v
Hlinais, 2{%4 F.3d 558, 363 (7th Cir. 2001}, Since [njo fixed formula exists tor applying the
docirine of primary jurisdiction,” each case must be examined individually to determine whether
it would be aided by the dectrine’s application.” Pemsry, 906 F.2d at 187 (quoting Sw. Bell'v,
PUC,7358.W. 2d at 670).

Courts faced with the task of determining whether primury jurisdiction applies when a
dispute atises between parties fo an alveady existing 1CA have noted that the statutory scheme
complicates the issue. The statmtory scheme complicates the issue beesuse the sppropriate
agency to which the coutt would refer the issoe is nol one apeney entrusted with carrying oul thiy
regulatory scheme, but multiple state commissions. See W. Radio Servs. Co. v. Qwest Corp,, 530
F.3d 1186, 1200 (9th Cir. 2008} ("The dociring of primary jurisdiction . . . is. . . not a perfect fit
for the statute before us. For anie thing, the agency with 'regulatory authorily’ in this context, in
the sense of huving the authority to promulgate regulations, is the F.C.C., not the state
sanmissions.") Addiionally, the statutory scheme does 1ot provide a procedusal mechansm for

referring issues to a state commission. See [Hinols Bell Tel. Co, v. Glabal NAPS Minods, ine.,
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551 F.3d 587 (7h 2008) (“The Act {does not) expressly anthorize a tederal court to refer such a
dispute, il the dispute arises ib & suif in {ederal court, o the state conumission .. ."). Despite
these complications, courts have routinely determined that issues may be referved to state
commissions when appropriate. Zd. (finding that a federal court's suthority fo refer issues 10 the
state commission "is a sensible corollary to the allocation of state and federal responsibilitics™);
see also Penny, 906 F.2d at 187-88 (referral o state commission was procedurally proper where
the state commission uﬁd district court ind concarsent jurisdiction te determine whether rates
where discriminatory under the FTCA).

Plaintiffs' FTCA claims bring forth two disting! issues, First, whether Defendants were
required to oblain stale commission approval before implementing the new calculation method.
This issuc is one that does not réquire agency expertise and therefore the Court need not refer it
to the state conunissions,

The second issue is whether the resale restriction is reasonable and nondiscriminatoery,
Determining whether a resale restriction is reasonable and sondiscriminatory is an issue
routinely addressed by state commissions. Therefore, this issue is one that is appropriate for
referral to (he state commissions, The regulatory scheme bolsters this conclugion as it requires
Defentdants to prove to the'state commission thal a restriction on resale is reasonable and
nondiscriminatory. Moreover, Defendants have indicatéd that they are now seeking approval of
the new calenlation method from slate comissions. The Court can fiud no reason to thwant
Defendants attenpts to obtain the approval that should have been obtained betfore implementing
the plan. Accordingly, the Cowurt finds that it is appropriate to stay Plaintiffs' claims pending a

resclution of this issuce by each of the appropriate state commissions.
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L. Preliminary Injnnection

A preliminary injunction may only be granted il a plaintif? establishes four cloments: tl )
a substantial likelikood of success on the merits, {2) a substantiai threat that plaintiff will suffer
irveparable injury if the injunction is denied, (3) that the threatened injury outweighs any damage
that the injunction might cause defendants, and (4) that the injunetion will not dhisserve the public
hiterest. Sr;gar Busters LLC v. Bresnan, 177 B.3d 258, 265 (5¢h Cir, 1999). A preliminary’
injunetion is an extraordinary remedy which should only be granted when the plain(iff has
clearly carried his burden of proof as to all four elements, see Kern River Gas Transmission Co.
v. Coeastal Corp., 899 F.2d 1458, 1462 (5th Cir. 1990), and the decision is lo be treated as the
exception vather than the rule. See Mivsissippi Power & Light Co. v. United Gas Pipe Line Co.,
760 . 2d 618, 621 (5th Cir, 1985},

Here, Plaintiffs huve clearly carried the burden of establishing all four elements making
the entry of a preliminary injunction appropriate. Plainliffs have established, and Defendants
have admitted in open court, that state commission approval was not obtained prior to
Defendants implementing the new calculation method which is a restriction on resale. As
previously discussed, 47 C.F.R. § $1.613(b) requires 1LIECs to oblain state commission approvat
before implementing a vesale restriction. Plaintiffs therefore, have established a strong likehihoad

of success on their claim that Defendants violated 47 C.F.R. § 51 613).7

7 Comnsunications by Defendants to the Court further evidence that Plaintilf have astrong likelihood of success on
their claim thar Defendanis violated 47 C.F.R. § 51.613(b). On the On Cetober 5, 2009, Defendants informed the
Court and Plaintiffs that they had received a letter from the Loaisiana Public Service Commission converning the
new calculation method. The letter - a copy of which Defendants provided 1o the Cowit - indicates the Lotisiana
Public Service Commission's decision 1o suspend the ciféciiveness of the new calculation methad. This decision
was based on an-initish finding thot the aew calewlation metiiod imposes a restriction on vesale and AT&T's fuilure Lo
ke the proper steps 1o have the Commission find that the rew culoudntion methed i reasohable and non-
discriminarory, Though the letter does not specifically state that the new ¢alenlation methad is unreasonable and
diseriminatory, the Louisiana Public Service Commilssion’s declsion Indieates a strong lkeliiood of such a finding,
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Plaintiffs have also established that if Defendants were permitied to implement the new
calculation method that they would suffer irreparable injury if the injunction is denied. The new
calenlation method would significantly impair Plaintiffs ability 10 compete with Defendants for
new customers, There would be no abilily fo compete becavge Defendants would be able to
entice new customers by offering $50 cash-back and a waiver of connection fess. Meanwhile,
Plaintiffs would not be able to make the same offer because they would be purchasing serviee
from AT&T at the normal vetail price without $50 cash-back or waiver of connection fees.” In
the absence of an injunction, Plaintifts would be forced to pay more for service than they would
have to pay without (he resale restriction that bias not been approved by any ef the state
commissions, Plaintiffs would have te iake these payments while shmultaneoisly losing money
because of their inability to compete with Defendants, These cirvimstances would devastate
Plaintiffs' business. In today's economy, this type of devastation could ultimately force
Plaintiffs’ out of busingss or at the least push them to the brink of being out of business-
something from which they would be unlikely to recover.

Plaintiffs have also demonstrated the threatenisd injury to them outweighs any damage
that the injunction might canse Defendants. 1t is of considerable importance to comparing the
pussible injuries that it is likely that if Plaintiffs were forced (o pay willions of dollars at this
time that it would be into an escrow avcount. Accordingly, Defendants would not aclually be
deprived of any income during the period in which this case is pending because the money would

remain in an éscrow mecount, Conversely, Plaintiffs would be forced to pay mioney that (hey do

* Atusost, Plaintiffs could offer new customers (e $3-§7 cashoback Mat Defendants are willing 1o give Plainiff
under the new caloniation methad. As aresult, the Plaintiffs sales piteh would be something o the. effect of "No, we
can't offer you £50 cashebiack like AT&T, Bul ATET has tesured us 1hat there is only a 33% chance that you will
take the necessary steps 1o recebve tint $50 cash-Dack. So why not sign-up with us and we will knock 33:47 off your
initial month of service:” Fhis cértainly, is not the Lype of sales pich that would allow Plainifty 1o remam
competitive- with Défendants.
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not have into an escrow thereby depriving of them of that money immediately, Therefore, the
Court finds that the irreparable injury that would be cuused to Plaintiffs in the absence of an
injunction would outweigh any damage thal the injunction might cause Defendants.

Finaily, Plaintiffs have demonstrated that the fnjunction will not disserve the public
interest. An injunction in this case will promote campetitiveness by ensuring that the statutes
and regulations of the FTCA are met, Enjoining Defendants from implementing the new method
of caleulation without obtaining state commission approval will serve the publie interest by
providing enforcement of the regulations promulgated by the FCC. Were this Court to simply
refer this case 1o the inany appropriate state commissions without issuing a preliminary
injunction then Defendants could go back 1o implementing the new calculation method prior to
obtain approval from the state commission. In so doing, Defendants may be able to force
Plaintiffs completely out of business before ever obtaining that approval. Forcing Plaintiffs out
of business would leave Defendants as one of the few providers of telephione service in the
relevant market. With far fewer telephone providers there will be far less competition. During
these hard economic times this Country needs more compelition not less competition.
Accordingly, the Court finds that nos issuing an injunction would disserve the public interest.

¥, Bond

Though Defendants' Motion to Intrease Bond was made in reference to the bond ordered
by the Court when issuing the T.R.Q., the metion can also be read as requesting that bond be
increased upon the entry of a preliminary injunction, Accordingly, the Court addresses

Defendants’ motion now,
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Rule 65(c) states:

The Court may issue a prélintinary injunaion . . . only if the movant gives seaurity in

an mnount that the cowrt considers proper W pay the costs and damages sustained by

any party found to have been wrongfully enjoined or restrained.
Fed, R. Civ. P. 65(c) (emphasis added). The italicized langunge indicates that defermining the
proper amount of bong is within the discrction of the district courl. d,; see.also Petro Franchise
Sys:, LLC v, Al Am. Props., Inc., 607 F. Supp. 2d 781, 801 (W.1). Tex. 2009) {"| d}istrict courts
have discretion over the amount of the security”). As discussed shove, the Court finds that it is
substantially likely that Plaintiff will succved in demonstrating that Defendants failed to obtain
state approval prior to hmplementing the new calculation method. In large part, this conclusion is
based on Defendants own admissions in open court. Accordingly, the Court finds that it is
highly uplikely that Defendants are being wrongfully resirained from implementing the new
method of calenlation prior to oblaining approval froim the appropriate state commissions. The
unlikelihood that Defendants are being wronglully restrained, coupled with (he fact that
Plaintiffs otherwise valid claim would be obviated by being forced (o post an inordinately large
bond amount, leads this Cowt to conclude that the $1,000,000 bond Defendants request would
be improper.

Nonetheless, tre Court does find that the amount of the bond posted should be increased
to more properly reflect thie guidance givei by Rule 65(e). Using this guidance, the Court herby
increases the bond from $5,000 to $50,000. Accordingly, Defendants’ Motion to Increase Bond
iz granted,

Y.  Plaintiffs’ Anti-Trust and Fraad Clabms
Defendanits argue that Plaintitfs' anti-trust and fraud claims shounld be dismissed pusnant

to Rule 12(b)}(6). Plaintiffs have essentially adinifted that the Amended Complaint does not state
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a claim for relief for anli-trust violations or frand. Plaintiffs have requested leave to amend to
correct these errors, Though the Courl betivves that Defendants may be correct in their assertion
that leave to amend would be futile in Light of Verfzen Comme'ns Inc. v. Trinko, 540 U.B, 398,
407 (2004), the Court is not prepared to reject Plaintiffs' contention that it can plead facts that
will state an anti-trust claim for relief, Adeordingly, the Court believes that Plainditfs should be
sranted leave to amend the compiaint. 1n 50 doing, the Court divects Plaintiffs to be mindful of
Trinko when pleading their anti-trust claims and to he mindful of the heightened pleadiug
standards of Fed. R. Civ. P. 9 when pleading their fraud claims,
IV.  Plaiatiffs Siate Law Clsims

Defendants only argument for dismissal of Plaintiffs’ $tate law elaims is that if this Count
dismisses Plaintiffy' federal claims it will not have jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ state law claims,
The Court however, has not dismissed PlaintiTy’ federal elaims. Supplemental juriediction over
Plaintiffs' state law elafims is therefore proper.

V. Canelugion

For the above stated reasons, the Court Defeidlants’ Motion to Dismiss for Lack of
Subject Maiter Jurisdiction is DENIED; Defendants' Motion 1o Dismiss for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction is DENIED; Defendams' Motion to Dismiss for Failurs to State a Clinm is DENIED,
Plaintiffs' Motion for o Preliminary Injunction is GRANTED; Defendants' Motion to Increase
Bowd is GRANTED; Defendants’ Motion to Disniiss Plaintiffy’ anti-trust and fraud claims is
GRANTED, but Plaintiffs ave GRANTED leave to amend their complaint to re-plead thesc
claims; and Defendants' Motion fo Dismniss Plaintiffs state law claims is DENIED,

The Couit ORDERS Defendants to desist and resirain from:
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1. Discrinnnating against Plainiiffs as resellors by prosecding to use the methodelogy
announced in the July 1, 2009, Accessible Letier (Number CLECALLO9-04 8) 1o
calenlate credils availuble to Competitive Local Exchange Caviers (CLECs) under
the Win-back Cash Back promotion,

2. ‘lmplemeﬁ;in g or further implementing any plans to impose restrictions on the resale
of the cash back or other promotional offers lasting longer than 90 days to Plaintifts
where such plans caloulate the credits available to CLECs using the mcthodalogy
announced in the July |, 2009, Accessible Letter (Number CLECALLU%-048)
without first obtain approval from the appropriate state commission.

3. Pursuing collection aclivitics against Plaintiffs in conrection with amounts related fo
the dispute over the calcnlation of ¢redits using the methodology announiced i the
July 1, 2009, Aecessible Letter (Number CLECALL09-048). This includes a
prohubition against Defendants from demanding paymient of charges in excess of the
promotional rate reduced by the wholesale discount, withholding preferential pricing
discounts te Plaintiffs, requiring additional security or amounts placed in escrow, or
suspending or disconpecting service to Plaintiffs, for amounts conneeted to this
dispute.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED ihat:

4. Plaintiffs post bond in the amount of $50,000.

5. Defendants sulnnit their plans to implement the new coleylation method 1o the

appropriate state comnHssions.

®(Pls." Am. Compl. Ex. 3)
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These proceedings will be stayed until each state commission hes reached a decision
determining whether Defendants’ new caleulation method i reasonable and nondiscriminafory.
Plaintiffs shall file their Amended Complaint, if any, onc¢e (he stay has been lifted. Though the

proceedings will be stayed, the preliminary injunction wili continue in effect until the stay has

been lifted or until it is otherwise altered by a written and signed order ot the Courl. o

ITIS SO ORDERED.

,

SIGNED this 30 ___ day of November, 2009,

—

!/z)“‘ga‘ (17 ‘H%/gm

i
L

JORGE A, SOLIS
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

1/ - ' . 7 . P P [T T P b P
®“Fhe Court wifl consider approprime alierations of the prefinvinary injonction should Defendants oblin approval 1o
impioment 1he new ealeulation method from a state commission priar 1o the stay being lifled.
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